
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

Please note that, pursuant to the authority provided by Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 1(1), the City has determined 
that in-person meetings of the City Council are not practical or prudent due to the COVID-19 public health pandemic 
and the declared national, state, and local emergencies.  Meetings of the Council will be conducted by electronic or 
telephonic means.  Under Minn. Stat. Sec. 13D.021, subd. 3, to the extent practical and possible, the City Council will 
allow individuals to monitor the meeting electronically.  Access to the meeting can be obtained online by following 
the link provided below or by contacting the City Hall for instructions and methods for obtaining access to the meeting. 

Meeting Access Information: https://www.ci.independence.mn.us/meetings 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY APRIL 20, 2021 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of Local Board of Appeals and Equalization Meeting Minutes from the 
April 6, 2021 LBAE Meeting. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the April 6, 2021 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20407-20410, Batch #2 
Check Numbered 20411-20440). 

d. Approval of an Assembly Permit at 3658 County Road 90 on Saturday, June 12, 
2021. 

e. RESOLUTION 21-0420-01 – Approving a Variance for the Property Located at 
6000 Providence Curve (Corrected Resolution that was considered at the April 6, 
2021 Council Meeting). 

f. RESOLUTION 21-0420-02 – Supporting Broadband in Communities Outside of the 
Immediate Metro Area. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. Consideration of an Ordinance Establishing Parameters Relating to Public Picketing Within 
the City: ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02. 

 



 

8. Consideration of Approval of a Stipulation for Removal of House on the Property Located at 
2828 County Line Road. 

 
9. West Hennepin Public Safety Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the March 2021 Activity 

Report. 
 

10. Jim Lundberg, Operations Director - Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission 
Organization Update. 

 
11. Open/Misc. 

 
12. Adjourn. 



 

 

 
 

BOARD OF REVIEW AND APPEAL- MINUTES 

TUESDAY, April 6, 2020 

6:00 P.M. 

(Virtual Meeting) 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, an appeal meeting of the Independence City Council/ 

Board of Review was called to order by Mayor Johnson at 6:00 p.m. via Zoom video call. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, and Councilors Betts, Grotting, McCoy and Spencer 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrative Assistant Horner, City Administrator Kaltsas, City Attorney 

Vose 

VISITORS: Hennepin County Assessors Dave Thomsen and Mel Potter, Randy Kyrola, Tom 

Notch, Steve and Ruth Clark 

 

3. Board of Appeal – Thomsen introduced the process explaining that 1/5 of the area is 

reviewed annually. Estimated market values are evaluated along with actual sales to 

determine percentages for the next year. The overall average value for properties in 

Independence is 4.06%. Residential- 3.7%, lakeshore- 8.3%, commercial- 1.0%, industrial- 

1.7%, agriculture-3.5%. Thomsen addresses individual properties as follows as presented to 

the review board: 

 

A. Tom Notch, 940 County Road 92: 

 

Thomsen said he spoke with Notch last year and had reduced his value at that time. The board 

agreed to reduce to $270,000. Notch wanted to know why the large percentage increase this year. 

Thomsen said the previous reduction was board recommended not county advised. Thomsen said 

the current market is not reflecting the large decrease in market value that was at one time 

relevant. He noted homes that are dated and comparable are selling in the 400-500k range.  

 

Spencer asked about two properties to the south of this property as he was curious about the 

comparability. Thomsen said it was similar but the market value for the current assessment is 

322k. Grotting noted the adjustments had come the previous year from the local level and 

wondered if they were treated different the following year. Thomsen said the market is ever-



 

 

changing and year to year makes a difference. Grotting questioned the process of having local 

review if it does not have an affect on the county level in the end. Johnson noted that creates a 

new value. Thomsen said the seller paid points are subtracted when looking at the property 

values. Grotting said the front split style of this house is the most difficult to renovate. Potter 

commented on Grotting’s concern of last year’s local opinion. She said the value needs to be 

market-based and on correct data. Notch said over two years he has seen a 43.7% increase 

without anything being done it at all. Notch compared  his property with the others in his area 

and those are Turner increased at 9% and Polo Club only went up 1% on average. Betts noted it 

was bought on a short sale which is much less than market value. She said that does not represent 

true market value.  

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Johnson to approve an adjusted valuation of $302,000 with 

any further action to be directed to Hennepin County. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, 

Betts, and Spencer.  Nays: None. Abstain: None.  Absent: None.  MOTION DECLARED 

CARRIED. 

 

B. Randee Kyrola, 4725 Lake Sarah Heights Dr.: 

 

Thomsen said the increase was mostly due to the land and this was a property that was an 

equalizer when reviewed. The value was not reflective of the market prior and there was also a 

kitchen renovation done all contributing to the final valuation. Kyrola said the value went up 

117k increase and with improvements it all equaled a 22.5% increase. He said the data he 

researched of properties around Lake Sarah show his property being way over the mark. Kyrola 

said he is way over the 8-9% outlined in the latest newsletter. Spencer noted Shady Beach 

properties increased by 16-20% this year. Thomsen said the property should have been valued 

higher in the prior years.   

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve an adjusted valuation of $625,000 with any 

further action to be directed to Hennepin Count. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Grotting, McCoy 

and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Abstain: None. Absent: None.  MOTION DECLARED 

CARRIED. 

 

C. Steve and Ruth Clark, 2365 Nelson: 

 

Thomsen said he spoke with Ruth Clark the day prior about the valuation of the acreage. It went 

from $124k to $184k. Thomsen noted it had been undervalued and he also said it did not qualify 

for Ag Preserve.  

 

Clark said she is not contesting her house value at this point in time and expects it will be valued 

in 2021. She said she is contesting the land valuation which had an increase of 48%. She noted 

vacant land has a premium price. Clark said she feels there is a big disparity between base lot 

size and 10 acres. Johnson noted a lot of the development on Nelson Road happened before there 

was a comprehensive plan in place. Thomsen said in the review of sales they look at disparities 

and noted there can be diminishing returns. McCoy said he felt the land should be around the 

160k mark.  

 



 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve an adjusted valuation of $544,500 with 

any further action to be directed to Hennepin Count. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Grotting, 

McCoy and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Abstain: None. Absent: None.  MOTION DECLARED 

CARRIED. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve reduction to $560,000 per assessor for the 

property located at 3658 County Road 90. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Grotting, McCoy and 

Spencer.  Nays: None.  Abstain: None. Absent: None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Spencer to approve reduction to $324,000 per assessor for the 

property located at 7464 County Road 6. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Grotting, McCoy and 

Spencer.  Nays: None.  Abstain: None. Absent: None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting recommended no change to the Patterson property 

proposed but could move to the county board if chosen. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Grotting, 

McCoy and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Abstain: None. Absent: None.  MOTION DECLARED 

CARRIED. 

 

 

4. ADJOURN 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Grotting to adjourn at 7:25 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, 

Grotting, McCoy and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Abstain: None. Absent: None.  MOTION 

DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

 

Recording Secretary 

 

Trish Gronstal 



 

1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, APRIL 6, 2021 –6:30 P.M. 

(Virtual Meeting/ All Attendees) 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 7:35 p.m. 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

 

Brad Spencer led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

2. ROLL CALL (Note: all noted present were “virtually” present 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts, McCoy and Grotting 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner, City Attorney Vose 

VISITORS: Patrick Farnham (Cedar Creek), Manu Chopra, Mike Kuka, Bryant Johnson 

 

3. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 16, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 Checks Numbered 20379-20385, Batch #2 Check 

Numbered 20386-20406).  

c. Approval of Pay Request #4 From Rochon for the City Hall Renovation Project. 

d. Approval of a Solicitor Permit for Window, Roofing, Siding Services Contractor –VL 

Builders. 

e. Approval and Award of Annual Dust Control and Gravel Contracts. 

 

Motion by Grotting, second by Betts to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, 

Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

4. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

• Johnson added discussion on construction parking 

 

5. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings: (Virtual) 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• LBAE Meeting 

 

 



 

2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings: (Virtual) 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• LBAE Meeting 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings:(Virtual)  

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• LBAE Meeting 

 

Betts attended the following meetings: (Virtual) 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• West Hennepin Chamber Meeting on detours for businesses in Maple Plain 

• LBAE Meeting 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: (Virtual- unless noted) 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• National League of Cities webinar 

• Hennepin County Active Living Committee Meeting 

• LMCC “State of the City Address” 

• University of Minnesota webinar 

• Senior Community Services Board Meeting 

• Sensible Land Use Coalition Meeting 

• American Experiment Meeting on Energy 

• League of Minnesota Cities First Amendment Rights Meeting 

• Zoom with Congressman Phillips 

• LBAE Meeting 

• Hennepin County meeting on construction equipment 

 

Horner attended the following meetings: (Virtual) 

• Planning Commission Meeting 

• LBAE Meeting 

• Construction meetings with various companies 

• BKV architect meeting 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

• MnDOT meetings on construction efforts 

• Cares Funding Meeting 

 

6.  John Nyhlen (Applicant) and Jeffrey Cunningham (Owner) request that the City consider the 

 following action for the property located at 9226 Highway 12 (PID No. 07-118-24-34-0005) 

 in Independence, MN: 

 

  a. RESOLUTION 21-0406-01: Considering approval of a conditional use permit to 

  allow a ground mounted solar system not exceeding 500 SF and denial of a variance 

  to allow a ground mounted solar system that exceeds 500 SF in total area.  

 

 

 



 

3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

Kaltsas said the applicant approached the City in 2020 about the possibility of installing a ground mounted 

solar system on the subject property. The City provided the applicant with the requirements and discussed the 

process for initially developing the City’s standards relating to ground mounted solar systems. All ground 

mounted solar systems require a conditional use permit. Ground mounted solar systems are limited to a 

maximum square footage of 500 square feet.  

 

Ground mounted solar systems have the following requirements: 

Subd. 5. Ground-mounted solar energy systems shall conform to the following standards: 

(a) Ground-mounted systems shall only be allowed on a parcel with an existing principal structure. 

(b) Ground-mounted systems shall be located only in rear or side yards. 

(c) Ground-mounted systems shall not be located in the Shoreland Overlay District(d) Ground-mounted 

systems shall be wholly screened from view from the public right-of-way and adjacent residential structures. 

Methods for screening shall include berming, fencing, landscaping and/or combination thereof. 

(e) Ground-mounted systems shall be located on a parcel of at least 2.5 acres. 

(f) Ground-mounted systems shall be setback 40 feet from the rear yards. 

(g) Ground-mounted systems shall be setback 30 feet from the side yards. 

(h) Ground-mounted systems shall have a maximum area of 500 SF. 

(i) The maximum height for any component of the system shall be 15 feet. 

(j) Ground-mounted systems shall be in compliance with any applicable local, state and federal regulatory 

standards, including building, electrical and plumbing codes. 

(k) Ground-mounted systems and their support structures shall be designed by a certified professional to meet 

applicable professional standards for the local soil and climate conditions. 

 

The proposed ground mounted solar system would be located in the rear yard of the existing home. The 

proposed solar system would be comprised of two separate ground mounted arrays. The total square 

footage of the two arrays is proposed to be 2,600 SF (1,300 SF per array). The proposed system would 

exceed the maximum square footage permitted by 2,100 SF. The arrays would be setback approximately 

40 feet from the north rear property line (rear yard) and 55 feet from the west side property line (side yard). 

The required setback for the rear yard is 40 feet and the required setback for the side yard is 30 feet. The 

proposed ground mounted system would have a maximum height of 9’-3” to the top of the highest 

portion of the panels.  

 

The City requires systems to be wholly screened from view of the public right of way and adjacent residential 

structures. There is a residential home and property just to the south of the subject property and proposed 

location of the ground mounted array. The proximity of the proposed ground mounted system to the nearest 

residence is approximately 250 feet. The distance from the proposed solar arrays to the Hwy 12 right of way 

is approximately 350 feet. The City will need to discuss whether or not additional screening should be added 

to the south property line should the request be recommended for approval. There is some existing vegetation 

located along the south property line (north property line of the adjacent property). One additional 

consideration relating to screening is that the panels will be oriented to face south. 

 

The applicant has provided the City with a site plan and images of the proposed solar system. The system 

is comprised 120 panels. The panels are oriented to the south and will be installed at a 30-degree angle to 

the ground. The proposed panels are mounted to a galvanized metal racking system. The racking system 

is proposed to be secured to the ground using helical pilings. The proposed solar panels are a mono Perc 

cell panel that has an anti-reflection coating. This type of panel is typically a little darker blue in color. 

 

 

 



 

4 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

The criteria for granting a conditional use permit are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance 

(Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 

occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 

in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 

5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage treatment, 

and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to protect the city form pollution 

hazards. 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural topography, 

tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, or 

vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 

 

520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision 1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 

terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 

is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with the 

comprehensive plan; and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 

with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that there are practical difficulties in complying with 

the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” means: 

 

(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 

code; 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the 

landowner; 

(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 

 

Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 

not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the 

zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend, and the City Council may 

impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 

proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

The City has discussed the proposed ground mounted solar system with the applicant. The proposed 

ground mounted solar system exceeds the City’s maximum size for ground mounted solar systems. The 

energy generated by this system 38.4 kW (AC) falls just below the maximum amount permitted by the state 

tariff limits for residential systems. The applicant has noted that the homeowners are planning on 

remodeling the home and installing a ground source HVAC system. The ground source system will 

generate a significant energy need for the property. There are a few additional considerations that should 



 

5 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

be noted by the City. The maximum size of permitted by a ground mounted solar system (500 SF) was based 

on the size of a typical residential solar system. This system would require the City to grant a variance to 

the maximum size to allow 2,100 additional square feet of surface area. The criteria for granting a 

variance are provided within this report. The City will need to find that the size limitation on ground 

mounted systems creates a hardship to the owner. Additionally, the City will need to also find that 

the granting of a variance will not alter the essential character of the area and maintain the 

reasonable use of the property. 

 

• The proposed system is a residential system that generates an amount of energy that comes in 

just below the maximum permitted for a residential installation. The system will generate approximately 

62,000 kWh in the first year. The average residential property across the US uses approximately 10,649 kWh 

per year and as much as 15,000 kWh per year. The proposed system meets the location, setback and 

maximum height requirements of the zoning ordinance. 

• The property has only one neighboring and potentially impacted property. The visibility of this system from 

the Hwy 12 right of way is limited or fully screened. The existing vegetation that separates the two properties 

is comprised primarily deciduous trees/shrubs. 

• The location of the proposed solar system is close to a potential wetland area (see yellow – possible and blue 

- probable areas below). The applicant is going to need to verify the extents of the wetland and confirm that 

no impact or a de minimis impact to the wetland is permitted. This may require a wetland delineation, 

adjusting the location within this general area of the property or splitting the system into three shorter arrays 

versus two longer arrays. The City will need to determine if the system should be further screened from the 

south property line.  

 

The City will also need to find that the proposed variance and conditional use permit meet the criteria for 

granting both and continues to allow the reasonable use and enjoyment of the surrounding properties. This 

site located off of US Hwy 12, the orientation of the proposed solar system and the relationship to the 

surrounding properties all aid in the mitigation of potential impacts relating to the ground mounted solar 

array. The City has received some verbal questions relating to the project and whether or not his is a 

commercial installation. It was noted that this is a residential installation. The City has not received any 

written comments regarding the proposed variance and conditional use permit. 

 

Kaltsas said the Planning Commissioners discussed the request for a variance and conditional use permit to 

allow a ground mounted solar system that exceeds the allowable square footage of 500 SF. Commissioners 

initially tabled this item to allow the applicant an opportunity to address the Commissioner and provide 

additional information relating to the need for the additional size. It was noted by the petitioner that their 

usage would be less than the amount of power generated by the proposed system and that they would be 

selling the power that is not use back to the utility provider. They noted that this would help with the 

economics of the proposed system and create a faster rate of return on the solar investment. Commissioners 

discussed the intent of the 500 SF limitation and asked whether or not a “typical” residential system could be 

constructed within the parameters established.  

 

Staff noted that the City has had only one other request for a ground mounted system which was 

approximately 450 SF and that CUP was approved. Commissioners believed that the intent of the ordinance in 

place was to allow ground mounted systems that would supply power to support a residential home, but that 

would not generate additional power for sale or in excess of need. Commissioners ultimately recommended 

approval of a conditional use permit to allow a 500 SF system and denial of the variance requesting additional 

square footage. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the conditional use permit to allow a 

ground mounted solar system and denial of the requested variance to allow a 2,6000 SF ground mounted 

system with the following findings and conditions: 



 

6 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

1. The proposed conditional use permit request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in 

Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 

2. Approval of the conditional use permit will be subject to the following conditions: 

 a) The applicant shall verify the extents of the wetland boundary and confirm that no impact or a de 

 minimis impact to the wetland is permitted by all regulatory authorities. This may require a wetland 

 delineation. Based on the information provided relating to the wetland boundary, the proposed 

 location and layout of the solar array may need to be adjusted or the array may need to be split into 

 three shorter arrays versus two longer arrays. 

 

3. The conditional use permit will include the following conditions:  

 a) The conditional use permit will allow a 500 SF ground mounted solar system that is installed in 

 accordance with the approved plans attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 b) The ground mounted solar system shall be constructed in accordance with all applicable zoning 

 code, building code and other applicable standards. 

 

4. The variance to permit a 2,600 SF ground mounted solar system is denied based on the following 

findings: 

 a) The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have not been satisfied by the applicant. 

 

Specifically, the City finds the following: 

 

1. The proposed 2,600 SF ground mounted solar system is larger than needed to support a residential property 

and does impact the essential character of the property and surrounding properties. 

2. The proposed variance, if granted, would allow a ground mounted solar system that provides energy in 

excess of the needs of the residential property. 

3. Potential impacts resulting from the larger ground mounted solar system have not been adequately 

mitigated by the applicant and would impact the adjacent property. 

5. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the review and recording of the resolution granting 

approval of the conditional use permit and variance. 

 

Johnson said it is hard to go beyond the ordinance in place. Grotting said there would not be a return on 

investment. Vose said economic hardship does not warrant a variance. He said “use” variances may not be 

granted as the code does not allow it. Betts said the Planning Commission did a very good job in their review. 

The applicant should have looked at the ordinances as it is clear and there is no commercial use allowed.  

 

Farnham said the return on investment was a part of the application, but the main purpose was to supply 

energy for the applicant. They use about 25kw of energy so a 500 square foot solar system would only 

provide for half of that need. Farnham also noted that solar has environmental benefits with low impact on 

surrounding grounds and wetland. He said the ROI is important but not the main driver. 

 

Motion by Betts, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 21-0406-01: Considering approval of a 

conditional use permit to allow a ground mounted solar system not exceeding 500 SF and denial of a 

variance to allow a ground mounted solar system that exceeds 500 SF in total area.  Ayes: Johnson, 

Spencer, McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION 

DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

 

 



 

7 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

7.  Mike Kuka (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following action for the property located at 

 4405 County Road 92 N. (PID No. 0411824310002) in the City of Independence, MN: 

 

  a. RESOLUTION 21-0406-02: An amendment to the existing conditional use permit, 

  allowing a commercial riding stable, to construct a new detached accessory structure 

  to be used as a tack room on the property located at 4405 County Road 92 N. 

 

Kaltsas said the City approved a conditional use permit (CUP) for the subject property in 2016 to allow a 

commercial riding stable. The CUP was amended in 2018 to allow additional horses to be boarded on the 

property. The applicant is now seeking an amendment to allow a tack room to be located on the property. A 

commercial riding stable is further defined in the City’s ordinance as follows: 

 

Subd. 69. "Riding stable, commercial." Stables, barns, and facilities for the keeping and riding of 

horses, both indoor and outdoor, operated as a livery or boarding stable, or other commercial recreational 

use. The commercial riding stable currently permitted allows the boarding of horses as well as hosting a 

limited number of additional equestrian related events within the facility. The proposed tack room would be 

located near the pen areas on the south side of the property. The applicant is currently using a mobile 

trailer as a tack room on the property. Staff notified the applicant that the City would require an amendment 

for any type of structure on the property including a temporary trail Staff has reviewed the request and offers 

several discussion points for further consideration by the City. 

 

1. The applicant is proposing to use the existing trailer for several years prior to being able to construct a 

permanent structure in this location. Staff is generally agreeable to the use of the trailer for a temporary tack 

room given its location and proximity to surrounding properties. 

2. The applicant has noted that they intend to construct a permanent structure in the future. The City 

could allow an amendment to the CUP which would allow the temporary trailer for period of time (5 

years or similar) at which time the permanent structure would need to be constructed and the temporary 

structure removed. 

3. The applicant further noted that the location of the proposed tack room near the existing pens is 

important to the operation of the commercial riding stable. 

4. The temporary trailer could not be occupied as a temporary residence or for living quarters at any 

time. 

 

Commercial riding stables are permitted as conditional uses in the Agriculture zoning district. In order for 

the City to consider approval of an amendment to the conditional use permit request it must find that it 

meets the criteria established within the zoning ordinance. The criteria for granting a conditional use permit 

are clearly delineated in the City’s Zoning Ordinance (Section 520.11 subd. 1, a-i) as follows: 

 

1. The conditional use will not adversely affect the health, safety, morals and general welfare of 

occupants of surrounding lands. 

2. The proposed use will not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other property 

in the immediate vicinity for the proposes already permitted or on the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. 

3. Existing roads and proposed access roads will be adequate to accommodate anticipated traffic. 

4. Sufficient off-street parking and loading space will be provided to serve the proposed use. 

5. The proposed conditional use can be adequately serviced by public utilities or on-site sewage 

treatment, and sufficient area of suitable soils for on-site sewage treatment is available to protect the city 

form pollution hazards. 

 



 

8 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

6. The proposal includes adequate provision for protection of natural drainage systems, natural 

topography, tree growth, water courses, wetlands, historic sites and similar ecological and 

environmental features. 

7. The proposal includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, or 

vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. 

8. The proposed condition use is consistent with the comprehensive plan of the City of Independence. 

9. The proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 

 

The subject property is located directly south of the Shrine Horse Facility which operates as a commercial 

riding stable. The relative size of the property, its access to County Road 92 and geographic seclusion 

help to mitigate potential issues related to the proposed tack room addition. The City is not aware of any 

current complaints or concerns relating to the operation of the commercial riding stable on this property. 

The proposed conditional use permit amendment to allow a tack room (temporary trailer and then 

permanent detached accessory structure) is consistent with the Agricultural nature of the property and 

surrounding land uses. The Planning Commission will need to determine if the requested conditional use 

permit amendment meets the criteria for granting a conditional use permit. 

 

The Planning Commissioners reviewed the request and asked questions of the applicant and staff. 

Commissioners discussed the temporary use of the trailer and the timing for the replacement with a 

permanent structure. It was noted that the application intends to replace the temporary structure within the 

five-year window considered. Commissioners found that the request for an amendment met the criteria 

established in the City’s zoning ordinance and confirmed that the conditions limiting use to a tack room were 

sufficient. Commissioners recommended approval of the CUP amendment. 

 

Planning Commissioners recommended approval of the request for a conditional use permit amendment with 

the following findings and conditions: 

1. The proposed conditional use permit amendment request meets all applicable conditions and 

restrictions stated Chapter V, Section 510, Zoning, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

2. The conditional use permit will be reviewed annually by the City to ensure conformance with the 

conditions set forth in the resolution. 

3. All conditions stated in Resolution No. 16-1213-02 AND 18-0710-01 shall remain in force. 

4. Approval of the conditional use permit amendment shall be subject to the following additional 

conditions: 

 a) The City will allow the temporary use of the existing trailer as a tack room for a period not 

 to exceed five (5) years from the date of City Council approval. 

 b) The temporary trailer will need to be removed from the location upon completion of a 

 permanent detached accessory structure. c) The City will permit a permanent tack room in the location 

 designated on the approved site plan attached hereto as Exhibit A. The overall size of the permanent 

 detached accessory structure shall be less than 1,500 SF. 

 d) The temporary trailer shall not be occupied as a temporary residence or for living quarters at any 

 time. 

5. The applicant shall pay for all costs associated with processing and recording the application 

for a conditional use permit amendment. 

 

Kuka said he was installing a roof on the south side of the trailer that will be unattached and asked if that was 

ok. Kaltsas said that was fine. Johnson asked if the trailer was attached to the ground. Kuka said it is blocked 

up at the moment to make it sturdy and he is going to anchor the corners as well.  

 



 

9 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

Motion by Johnson, second by Spencer to approve RESOLUTION 21-0406-02: An amendment to the 

existing conditional use permit, allowing a commercial riding stable, to construct a new detached 

accessory structure to be used as a tack room on the property located at 4405 County Road 92 N. 

Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  

MOTION DECLARED CARRIED.  

 

8.  Mark Kroskin (Applicant/Owner) is requesting the following action for the property located 

 at 6000 Providence Curve (PID No. 1411824420008) in the City of Independence, MN: 

 

  a. RESOLUTION 21-0406-03: A variance to allow a detached accessory structure to 

  be located closer to the side and rear property lines than otherwise permitted on the 

  property located at 6000 Providence Curve. 

 

Kaltsas said the applicant approached the City about the possibility of locating a new detached accessory 

structure in the northeast corner of their property. The applicant noted that they would like some additional 

storage space and identified the proposed location as the spot most desired for a multitude of reasons. The 

proposed detached accessory structure would be 1,050 SF (30’ x 35’) and would have a double overhead 

door. The proposed building would include a second story storage loft. The exterior building materials 

proposed would match the siding and roof of the house. 

 

The applicant is seeking a variance from the rear and side yard setbacks to allow the proposed structure. 

The variances requested would allow the construction of a detached accessory structure to be located 

closer to the east and north property lines than permitted by the City. The applicant is proposing to setback 

the proposed structure 10’-0” from the east property line and 10’-0” from the north property line. The 

required rear yard setback is 40’ and the required side yard setback is 15’. Setbacks for RR-Rural Residential 

Properties are as follows: 

 

Side Yard Setback for Detached Accessory Structures: 

Required: 15’-0” 

Proposed (East): 10’-0” (variance of 5’-0”) 

Rear Yard Setback for Detached Accessory Structures: 

Required: 40’-0” 

Proposed: (North): 10’-0” (variance of 30’-0”) 

There are several factors to consider relating to granting a variance. The City’s ordinance has established 

criteria for consideration in granting a variance. 

 

520.21. Standards for granting variances. Subdivision1. The City Council may grant a variance from the 

terms of this zoning code, including restrictions placed on nonconformities, in cases where: 1) the variance 

is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this zoning code; 2) the variance is consistent with 

the comprehensive plan: and 3) the applicant establishes that there are practical difficulties in complying 

with the zoning code (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) Subd. 2. An applicant for a variance must demonstrate that 

there are practical difficulties in complying with the zoning code. For such purposes, “practical difficulties” 

means: 

 

(a) The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning code; 

(b) the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 

created by the landowner; 

(c) the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 



 

10 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. Practical difficulties include, but are 

not limited to, inadequate access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

Subd. 3. The City Council shall not grant a variance to permit a use that is not allowed under the 

zoning code based on the zoning classification of the affected property. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

520.23. Conditions and restrictions. The board of adjustments may recommend, and the City Council may 

impose conditions on a variance. Conditions must be directly related to and must bear a rough 

proportionality to the impact created by the variance. (Amended, Ord. 2011-08) 

 

Consideration of the criteria for granting a variance: 

a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District. The applicants are 

seeking a variance that exceeds the typical setback granted for properties in this area. 

b. The property backs up to an Out lot owned by the Providence HOA. The City recently adopted 

standards that would allow the City’s ABRC to consider allowing relief of the rear yard setback to a 

minimum of 15’ (see actual ordinance provision below). The applicant was provided with this 

information. 

a. The property shares a rear yard property line with an out lot, and the setback will be at least 

15 feet. 

There are several criteria that would need to be met in order for the ABRC to consider granting relief to the 

setback. One of those criteria is consent or agreement on the reduced setback from the property owner(s) of 

the adjacent property (HOA). 

c. The character of the surrounding area is residential. The proposed detached accessory structure would be in 

keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses found in this neighborhood. 

d. There is an existing detached accessory structure located behind the house on the subject property. The 

overall size of this structure is approximately 475 SF. The City allows a maximum of 1,850 SF for the total 

permitted for all detached accessory structures on properties less than 2.5 acres. The total SF in the after 

condition would be 1,525 SF which is less than the maximum permitted. 

e. The alternate septic site location is located in the general vicinity of the proposed detached accessory 

structure. Moving the structure further away from the property lines (to the west and south) potentially 

encroaches further into the alternate site. This site is an estimated area and could likely be adjusted to the 

south and east when needed in the future. 

f. The applicant has noted that they would like to maintain the existing evergreen trees in this area and the 

proposed location makes this possibility more feasible. 

 

The City received written acknowledgement from the Providence HOA that it approves the requested 

variance. 

 

Planning Commissioners discussed the application and asked questions of staff and the application. 

Commissioners reviewed more specifically the existing property conditions and the need for an additional 

five-foot encroachment into the setback on both sides of the proposed shed. Commissioners asked about 

the location of the secondary septic site and its proximity to the proposed shed. Commissioners discussed 

the existing trees on the property. Commissioners ultimately found that the request for a variance from the 

north (rear property line) property line would meet the criteria recently established in the amended zoning 

ordinance and could have been considered by the Accessory Building Review Committee (ABRC). 

Commissioners recommended approval of the rear yard setback variance only with a condition that the 

applicant provide written correspondence from the Providence HOA acknowledging consent to the reduced 

setback. The City has received the written acknowledgement. Commissioners did not recommend 

approval of the reduced side yard setback. 

 

 



 

11 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

Planning Commissioners recommended approval of a variance to allow a reduced rear yard setback of 15 feet 

with the following findings and conditions: 

 

1. The requested variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in Chapter V, 

Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning Ordinance. 

 

2. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the applicant. 

 

Specifically, the City finds the following: 

 a. Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District.  

 b. The property backs up to an out lot owned by the Providence HOA and they have provided written 

 acknowledgement of their approval of the requested variance to the City. 

 c. The character of the surrounding area is residential. The proposed detached accessory structure 

 would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses found in this neighborhood. 

 

3. The variance will permit a 30-foot reduction (40 feet required, 10 feet permitted) of the rear yard 

setback (north property line) and no reduction of the side yard setback east property line which requires a 15-

foot setback) to allow the proposed detached accessory structure as depicted on the site plan and building 

plans attached hereto as Exhibit A. Any modification changes or alteration to the structure that does not meet 

applicable setbacks in the future would require additional review and approval in the form of a variance. 

 

4. The applicant shall submit a drainage plan to the City at the time of building permit application. The 

drainage plan will be reviewed by the City to ensure that the proposed improvements do not adversely impact 

any of the surrounding properties. 

 

5. The applicant shall pay all fees to the City associated with the review and approval of the requested 

variance. 

 

Spencer asked about Resolution #3 and Kaltsas noted it would be corrected to correct language. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to approve RESOLUTION 21-0406-03 per Staff revisions to be 

final approved on the consent agenda at the next meeting: A variance to allow a detached accessory 

structure to be located closer to the side and rear property lines than otherwise permitted on the 

property located at 6000 Providence Curve. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  

Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED.  

 

9.  Bryant Johnson (Applicant) and Hilltop Farm, Inc. (Owner) is requesting a concept plan 

 review for a subdivision of the property located between CSAH 90 and CSAH 83 and 

 identified as PID No. 2611824130001. The proposed subdivision would ultimately require 

 the rezoning of the property and a minor subdivision and would create eleven rural 

 residential lots. 

 

Kaltsas said the applicant is asking the City to consider and provide feedback relating to a concept plan for the 

proposed subdivision of a portion of the subject property. A concept plan allows the City the opportunity to 

initially review the proposed subdivision and provide feedback and comments to the applicant prior to the 

submittal of any applications for rezoning and preliminary plat. In order for the City to ultimately consider 

approval of a plan similar to the proposed concept plan, the following steps would be required: 

 

 



 

12 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

1. Rezone the property to the new zoning district. 

2. Consider Preliminary Plat approval. 

3. Consider Final Plat approval. 

 

Kaltsas noted the City is in the process of updating the Comprehensive Plan from the 2030 plan to the 2040 

plan. The City’s 2030 plan identifies this property as Rural Residential. The rural residential designation 

allows for a general development density of 1 unit per 5 acres. The 2040 Comprehensive Plan guides the 

eastern portion of this property for sewered residential. 

 

2030 Comprehensive Proposed Subdivision Concept Plan 

The applicant has prepared a concept plan for review by the City. The City has preliminarily reviewed this 

plan and provides a general review if the various aspects within this report. The 2030 and 2040 

Comprehensive Plan both guide the western portion of this property for RR-Rural Residential. Rural 

Residential properties can realize the following number of lots: 

 

Subd. 3. Density. Lots of record in the rural residential district may be divided or subdivided into the 

following maximum number of lots, said maximum number to include the lot for any existing dwelling unit 

or other principal use: (Amended, Ord. 2010-01) 

Area of Lot Maximum Number 

of Record of Lots Permitted 

7.5 acres or less One 

7.6 through 12.5 acres Two 

12.6 through 17.5 acres Three 

17.6 through 22.5 acres Four 

22.6 through 27.5 acres Five 

27.6 through 32.5 acres Six 

32.6 through 37.5 acres Seven 

37.6 through 42.5 acres Eight 

42.6 through 47.5 acres Nine, plus one addn. lot for every five addn. acres of land. 

 

Based on a traditional Rural Residential subdivision, it is estimated that western portion of this property 

guided for RR can yield 12 lots (9, plus (62.6-47.5 = 15.1) (15.1/5 = 3). The applicant is asking for the City 

to consider granting 13 lots based on a different way to calculate density (taking 62.6 – 42.6 = 20) (20/5 = 

4) which would yield 13 lots. The City has historically calculated density based on the high-end number 

shown in the table and not the low-end number. Further direction will need to be provided relating to the 

density permitted. 

 

The City has discussed the potential subdivision of this property with the applicant. The City discussed a 

couple of key considerations relating to the future development of this property and adjacent properties. The 

City noted that the Metropolitan Council has identified a potential future (beyond 2040) sewer expansion area 

which encompasses this property (see map below). The initial review of the subdivision contemplates a high-

level review only of the proposed concept development plan. A detailed review of the storm water, grading, 

wetlands and infrastructure details will be completed prior to consideration of any future applications. The 

City does not formally approve or deny a concept plan. The concept plan review will provide direction and 

comments to the applicant for their use during the preparation of future applications. The following comments 

should be considered by the City: 

 

1. The proposed plan shows lots that would be accessed via a new cul-de-sac that would be connected to 

County Road 90. Hennepin County would ultimately need to approve any proposed road connection and may 



 

13 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

require both northbound and southbound turn lanes. It does not appear that the proposed access point would 

meet the County’s spacing guidelines from Turner Road. This property does have the ability to be accessed 

via the Tuner Road right of way. 

 

a. Hennepin County has preliminarily reviewed the concept plan and provided the following 

comments: 

We offer the following comments generally in support of city notes included in the city’s 

summary report along with some additional consideration: 

• We do not support the proposed cul-de-sac street app. 400’ N of Turner Rd (660’ spacing guidelines 

minimum) 

• We very much support the idea of directing access to Turner Rd and requiring the developer stub the street 

to city specifications at this alignment. 

• Northside alignment to Quass Cutoff Rd is perhaps another preferred access alignment 

• Regardless of street alignment, we recommend full left and right-turn lanes for the access to provide 

residents and visitors a safer, more comfortable deceleration into the site (11 SF homes/50mph/ADT 2,500) 

• Aligning to existing public streets while strongly preferred, presents a challenge to match turn lanes for the 

existing west side of intersection. We welcome further discussion with the city on how best to deliver this 

amenity as well (now or in the future). Unfortunately, I do not see a pavement overlay on our schedule (2021-

2024) at this time 

• If/when replatting we support dedication to match a 50’ half right-of-way as proposed along both CSAH 90, 

and CSAH 83. There likely would need to be additional ROW at turn lanes however; 

• We recommend the city consider a ‘ghost plat’ of how to incorporate this new development into a future 

internal planned street network (esp N-S) with local connections to existing streets. Need to minimize 

connections to county road We appreciate any further consideration and welcome additional discussion as 

needed 

 

2. The proposed development does not consider the use of the existing right of way known as the 

unimproved portion of Turner Road to the south. The City should discuss the future of Turner 

Road and whether or not this development should incorporate Turner Road into the design. At a 

minimum, the City may want to consider requiring dedication of the additional 33 feet of right of 

way. 

 

3. The length of the proposed cul-de-sac (greater than ¼ mile) should be noted by the City. In 

addition, the City may want to consider a future connection of the proposed road to the east. The 

current plan does not provide for a future connection. The City would generally require that roads 

be extended to the edge of the property unless it is not feasible for a future road connection due to 

natural features, topography, etc. 

 

4. The property abuts an industrial property to the north. The applicant should consider buffering and 

or berms along the north property line to mitigate the existing industrial development. 

 

5. There are probable wetlands that show up on the national wetland inventory in several locations on 

this property (see image below). A wetland inventory will be required to be prepared and submitted 

with preliminary plat.  

 

6. The applicant will need to confirm that all lots meet the minimum of 2.5 acres of upland (buildable) area. In 

addition, the applicant will need to confirm that all lots can accommodate a primary and secondary septic site. 

7. It appears that all of the proposed lots meet the minimum lot frontage requirements. 

 



 

14 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

8. The overall property would need to be split in order to accommodate the proposed development. 

The remainder 90 acres would become a separate lot and likely not plated at this time. 

 

9. The applicant will need to provide more information relating to the ownership and use of out lot A. 

 

10. It is anticipated that the proposed homes would be custom built. 11. The proposed concept subdivision 

would be subject to the City’s park dedication requirements. No park land dedication is shown on the concept 

plans. The City should provide feedback relating to possible park dedication on the subject property. It may be 

desirable for the City to consider some park development on this property. Discussion relating to park 

dedication should be provided by the City. The standard park dedication per lot fee would otherwise be 

applicable to all newly developed lots. 

 

Staff would like direction and feedback relating to the general design and layout of the proposed subdivision. 

The City will need to provide direction relating to whether or not Turner Road should be maintained in its 

current location and eventually improved to a full road section. This determination will likely be necessary 

prior to the consideration of this development moving forward. The City should consider whether or not a 

future path should be maintained for the extension of utilities to the west noting that there is not another 

undeveloped route. Consideration of a cluster development that would maintain a developable area that could 

accommodate the expansion of utilities in the future could be considered. The City should also provide 

additional feedback and direction relating to the development of Turner Road, future use and dedication of 

additional right of way. 

 

Planning Commissioners discussed the proposed concept plan and asked questions of the applicant and staff. 

Commissioners noted that access is going to be an important issue to resolve prior to moving forward. 

Commissioners noted that Turner Road should be considered and even if not fully constructed at this time, 

provide the point of access into the development rather than the proposed “mid-block” connection to CSAH 

90.Commissioners noted that there are properties located along Drake Drive that need access to an improved 

road. 

 

The City Council should review the plans and provide feedback to the applicant pertaining to the proposed 

concept plan. No formal action can be taken by City Council on the concept plan. There are additional steps 

that will need to be taken for any development of this property to occur. 

 

Spencer noted connectivity could be through Turner Road and emergency vehicles could use an east/ west 

development. Kaltsas said it is a good conversation and trying to anticipate issues with different types of 

connections. McCoy asked if Turner Road sewer connections would be better to the west. Kaltsas said if 

Turner is built out than the sewer line could be built that way.  

 

Johnson said the wetland delineation was done but the file was too large to email. He said there are 2.5 

buildable acres per lot. Hennepin County said access off of County Road 90 would never happen so Turner 

would be better for access. He said once the eastern portion is completed there will be access from Main 

Street.  Betts asked Vose what the legal implications are for the City if Turner is not used as a road. Vose said 

the City could vacate or close Turner Road but alternate access has to be considered. He said it was a difficult 

question to answer in the abstract. Grotting said it was cost prohibitive to use Turner Road due to the wet 

conditions. Betts asked about developing a road to the North. Kaltsas said that is a good point and illustrated 

different ideas including Quass etc. Grotting said if Turner went all the way through it would be very busy or 

they would come through Drake. He noted all the traffic cannot be funneled to County Road 83.  

Spencer asked about Lot 1 with the wetland in the middle of it and what challenges would be presented for 

septic. Johnson said there is a new plan showing the delineated wetlands. Kaltsas said that maybe there is not 



 

15 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

as much wetland as originally highlighted. Grotting asked Mayor Johnson about the tiling. Johnson said the 

water runs down along the north edge of Turner Road. Betts said she would ride horseback along there, and it 

would get muddy but not impassable. Spencer said he understands Johnson’s cul-de-sac plan, but he thinks 

the development of Turner could be valuable to the City. He said he would not recommend abandoning 

Turner Road. Mayor Johnson noted Hilltop donated 30’ of land to Turner Road. 

 

10.  MS4 Permit Update – Consider Approval of and Authorization to Submit Updated Permit 

 Application/TMDL Compliance/BMP Activity Schedule in Accordance with MPCA Requirements. 

 

The MPCA released the new MS4 permit in November 2020. The City of Independence has until April 

15th to submit a permit application, including an updated TMDL form. After submittal, the application 

will be reviewed by the MPCA and go through a 30-day public notice before being approved. Once the 

application is approved, the City will have 12 months from the date of approval to implement the new 

permit requirements. The new requirements include: 

 

· Increased education requirements 

· Requiring a public education activity event 

· Additional regulatory mechanisms for pet waste and salt management 

· Increased documentation for inspections 

· Increased training for all field staff (including police and fire departments) 

· Compliance schedule for TMDLs 

 

We are requesting the City Council authorize the submittal of the attached permit application and 

TMDL compliance/BMP activity schedule to the MPCA. 

 

Johnson noted it would be good to put educational information in our newsletter and Kaltsas agreed. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve the MS4 Permit Update –Approval of and 

Authorization to Submit Updated Permit Application/TMDL Compliance/BMP Activity Schedule in 

Accordance with MPCA Requirements. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, Grotting and Betts.  Nays: 

None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

11.  Open/ Misc. 

 

Johnson noted the request to park construction trailers in the church lower parking lot over the summer as 

needed. 

 

Motion by McCoy second by Grotting to approve the parking of construction vehicles for staging 

purposes at the church parking lot over the summer as needed. Ayes: Johnson, Spencer, McCoy, 

Grotting and Betts.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

12.  Adjourn. 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by Betts to adjourn at 9:20 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Grotting, McCoy, Betts, 

and Spencer.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

____________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 

 



 

16 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

7:35 p.m. April 6, 2021 

 

 







 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-0420-01 
 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVIING AN APPLICATION FOR A VARIANCE   

TO ALLOW A REDUCED REAR YARD SETBACK  
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6000 PROVIDENCE CURVE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence (the “City) is a municipal corporation under the 

laws of Minnesota; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City adopted a comprehensive plan in 2010 to guide the development of 

the community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has adopted a zoning ordinance and other official controls to assist 

in implementing the comprehensive plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mark Kroskin, (the “Applicant/Owner”) submitted an application for a 

variance to allow a reduced side and rear yard setback on the property located at 6000 Providence 
Curve (PID No. 14-118-24-42-0008) (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property is zoned RR- Rural Residential; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Property is legally described as: 

 
LOT 1, Block 1, PROVIDENCE BY THE LAKE; and 

 
WHEREAS the requested Variance meets all requirements, standards and specifications 

of the City of Independence zoning ordinance for Agriculture lots; and 
 
WHEREAS the Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 16, 2021 to review 

the application for a variance, following mailed and published noticed as required by law; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all materials submitted by the Applicant; 

considered the oral and written testimony offered by the applicant and all interested parties; and 
has now concluded that the application is in compliance with all applicable standards and can be 
considered for approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

INDEPENDENCE, MINNESOTA, that it should and hereby does approve the application by 



 

Mark Kroskin and grants one of the requested variances for the property in accordance with the 
City’s zoning regulations with the following findings and conditions: 

 
1. The proposed variance request meets all applicable conditions and restrictions stated in 

Chapter V, Section 520.19, Procedures on variances, in the City of Independence Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

2. The City finds that the criteria for granting a variance have been satisfied by the 
applicant.  Specifically, the City finds the following: 

 
a) Residential use of the property is consistent with the Rural Residential District.   

 
b) The property backs up to an Outlot owned by the Providence HOA and they have 

provided written acknowledgement of their approval of the requested variance to the 
City. 

 
c) The character of the surrounding area is residential.  The proposed detached 

accessory structure would be in keeping and consistent with the surrounding uses 
found in this neighborhood.  

 
3. The variance will permit a 25-foot reduction (40-foot setback required, 15-foot setback 

permitted by variance) of the rear yard setback (north property line) and no reduction of 
the side yard setback (east property line which requires a 15-foot setback) to allow the 
proposed detached accessory structure as depicted on the site plan and building plans 
attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
 

4. Any modification changes or alteration to the structure that does not meet applicable 
setbacks in the future would require additional review and approval in the form of a 
variance. 

 
5. The Applicant shall submit a drainage plan to the City at the time of building permit 

application.  The drainage plan will be reviewed by the City to ensure that the proposed 
improvements do not adversely impact any of the surrounding properties. 

 
6. The Applicant shall pay for all costs associated with the City’s review and recording of 

the requested variance. 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 
20th day of April 2021, by a vote of ____ayes and ____nays.    

 
______________________________ 

       Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT A 
(Site Plan) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



         Municipal Offices 

         7701 County Road 110 West 

         Minnetrista, MN 55364-9552 

       Email: minnetrista@ci.minnetrista.mn.us 

         

OFFICE: (952) 446-1660    FAX: (952) 446-1311    WEBSITE: www.cityofminnetrista.com 

 

 

 

 

March 18, 2021 

 

 

 

City of Independence City Council 

1920 County Road 90 

Independence, MN 55359 

 

 

Re: Cooperative Effort for Broadband in Underserved Communities Outside the Metro 

 

 

Dear Mayor and City Council,  

 

The City of Minnetrista City Council has determined that increasing broadband and internet 

services to our residents is a top priority in 2021 and beyond. With an increased need for 

broadband exacerbated in the last year by COVID-19, our residents are needing internet services 

now more than ever.  

 

Like Minnetrista, Independence falls into the underserved areas of Minnesota. Our cities are 

right outside the metro and are considered underserved, not unserved. The Minnetrista City 

Council is asking the cities of Greenfield, Independence, Medina, Orono, St. Bonifacius, Tonka 

Bay, and Victoria to join in our efforts. 

 

Since our communities are on the edge of the Metro area, we are often overlooked when the 

State of Minnesota is distributing funding and awarding dollars via their DEED Border-to-

Border Broadband Expansion Grant program. Typically, much more funding goes to rural and 

outstate communities in Minnesota.  

 

For example, of the 40 projects awarded by the Office of Broadband Development with the 2020 

DEED grants, Minnetrista is one of only two areas within the 7-County Metro area to receive 

funding for broadband expansion. Also, both awarded communities are amongst the lowest 

funded projects, overall. The Minnetrista City Council believes communities like ours should not 

be over looked just because of our geographical location. The needs of our residents and options 

for broadband services in our areas aren’t unlike those who live in rural and outstate Minnesota.  

 

The Minnetrista City Council is asking that Independence City Council work cooperatively with 

us and other elected officials in surrounding communities to seek help in directing more funding 

towards our City’s broadband needs. Working together and directing requests to both County and 

mailto:minnetrista@ci.minnetrista.mn.us


 

 

State representatives for additional dollars may help get the attention of the Office of Broadband 

Development to potentially award additional projects and dollars.  

 

Attached you will find a resolution of support to work cooperatively in an effort to seek 

additional support and funding for broadband expansion grant opportunities. Please discuss with 

your City Council at one of your upcoming Council meetings. If your Council believes it to be of 

benefit to work together, we ask that you sign and return the resolution to our City offices by 

April 14, 2021. The City of Minnetrista passed this Resolution at its March 15, 2021 City 

Council meeting. We will include all the signed resolutions in the letters to our County and State 

representatives.  

 

We thank you for your support and look forward to creating better broadband connectivity for 

our residents.  

 

Respectfully,  

 
 

Mayor Lisa Whalen 

City of Minnetrista 

 



	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
www.ci.independence.mn.us 

	

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-0420-02 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR THE COOPORATIVE EFFORT FOR 
BROADBAND IN UNDERSERVED COMMUNITIES OUTSIDE THE METRO 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence has determined that increasing broadband and 

internet services to residents is a top priority in 2021 and beyond; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence City Council is working in collaboration with 

neighboring City Council’s by seeking support from elected representatives that serve our 
communities at the county and state level of government for directing additional DEED grant 
dollars for our broadband needs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence believes communities like ours should not be over 

looked just because of our geographical location, as our communities are not that dissimilar from 
the overwhelming majority of rural and outstate communities that currently receive DEED grant 
funding from the Office of Broadband Development; and 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Independence that 
we support the collaborative efforts in seeking additional support and funding for broadband 
expansion grant opportunities. 
 
          This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 20th 
day of April 2021, by a vote of ______ayes and ______nays. 
 
 

                                                                                  
_______________________________________ 

                                                            Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
 
 
           ATTEST: 
 
           _______________________________________ 
           Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
	



Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
 

Discussion Regarding Targeted Picketing Ordinance 
 

To: City Council 
 

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 

Meeting Date: April 20, 2021 
 

 
 
Discussion: 
 
West Hennepin Public Safety has asked the City to consider adopting an ordinance that would establish 
parameters for targeted picketing within the City based on recent events.  The City does not currently have 
an ordinance that specifically pertains to public picketing events that would target individual residences.  
Staff and the City Attorney have discussed types (approaches to providing residents with protection) of 
ordinance, language and defensibility.  Based on these discussions, the City Attorney prepared a draft 
ordinance for consideration by the City Council. 
 
Council Recommendation: 
 
West Hennepin Public Safety Director Gary Kroells and the City Attorney will provide additional context 
relating to the ordinance consideration at the meeting.  City Council is asked to consider adoption of 
ORDINANCE 2021-02. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: ORDINANCE 2021-02 
 
 



 

DOCSOPEN\AK155\1\706072.v1-3/1/21 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9, BY ADDING A NEW SUBSECTION 900.09  
SUBJ. 4 THERETO, REGULATING TARGETED PICKETING IN RESIDENTIAL 

NEIGHBORHOODS IN THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that targeted residential picketing in front of or about a 
residential dwelling causes emotional distress to the dwelling occupants, obstructs and interferes with the 
free use of public rights-of-way and has as its object the harassment of the dwelling occupants; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council further finds that, without resorting to targeted residential 
picketing, ample opportunities exist for those otherwise engaged in targeted residential picketing to 
exercise constitutionally protected freedom of speech and expression; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the protection and preservation of the home is the keystone of democratic 
government; the public health and welfare and the good order of the community require that members of 
the community enjoy, in their homes and dwellings, a feeling of wellbeing, tranquility and privacy and, 
when absent from their homes and dwellings, carry with them the sense of security inherent in the 
assurance that they may return to the enjoyment of their homes and dwellings; the practice of picketing 
before or about residences and dwellings causes emotional disturbance and distress to the occupants, 
obstructs and interferes with the free use of public sidewalks and public ways of travel; such practice has 
as its object the harassing of such occupants and, without resort to such practice, full opportunity exists, 
and under the terms and provisions of this section, will continue to exist for the exercise of freedom of 
speech and their constitutional rights; and that the provisions hereinafter enacted are necessary for the 
public interest to avoid the detrimental results herein set forth.  
 
Section 1.  Definitions. For the purpose of this ordinance, “targeted residential picketing” means an 
activity, including but not limited to marching, standing or patrolling, that is focused on a single 
residential dwelling without the consent of the dwelling’s occupant(s).  
 
Section 2.  Prohibited Activity. No person shall engage in targeted residential picketing within the City. 
 
Section 3.  Violation/Penalty. Every person convicted of a violation of any provision of this Ordinance 
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
Section 4.  Severability. Should any section, subdivision, clause, or other provision of this Ordinance be 
held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole, or of any part thereof, other than the part held to be invalid. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon its passage and publication as 
required by law.  
 
Passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence this 20th day of April 2021. 



 

DOCSOPEN\AK155\1\706072.v1-3/1/21 

 
 
 
             
        _________________________ 
        Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 
 
(Seal) 
 

 



Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
 

Discussion Regarding Construction of a New Home  
While Living in the Existing Home on a the Property Located at 2828 County Line Road 

 
To: City Council 

 
From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
Meeting Date: April 20, 2021 

 

 

Discussion: 
 
Kari and Richard Stromer, 2828 County Line Road, are asking the City to consider allowing the issuance of 
a building permit to construct a new principal home on the subject property while living in the existing home.  
The issue identified by the City is that we do not allow two principal structures on a single property.  The 
owners are trying to improve the property and create a situation that would allow them to remain on the 
property during construction.  The City does not have a specific provision for this in the ordinance.  
Historically, the City has considered permitting living in the existing home while constructing a new home as 
a conditional use of the property; however, this is no longer considered the best practice as temporary uses 
can no longer be considered as conditional uses.   
 
Staff reviewed this issue with the City Attorney and determined that a simple agreement and escrow would 
provide the City with protections that would ensure the removal of the existing structure following 
substantial completion of the new structure.  The City has prepared a draft agreement for consideration. 
 

 



Page 2 

 

The agreement requires the removal of the existing structure within 90 days of substantial completion of the 
new structure and a $5,000 escrow deposit to be held by the City.  In addition, the City has the ability to 
withhold the final certificate of occupancy until full compliance is realized.    Staff believes that this approach 
is reasonable and enforceable by the City and allows flexibility to Kari and Richard to construct their new 
home. 
 
 
Council Recommendation: 
 
City Council is asked to consider approval of the Stipulation for Removal of House attached hereto. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Stipulation for Removal of House 
 
 



RJV-241188v1  
ND115-7 

STIPULATION 
FOR REMOVAL OF HOUSE 

 
 The undersigned, Richard and Kari Stromer (“Stromer”), hereby stipulate and agree with 
the City of Independence (“City”) as follows: 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, Stromer owns a home at 2828 County Line Road, Independence, Minnesota 
55328 (PID 1811824240004) (the “Property”), and; 

 
WHEREAS, Stromer intends to construct a new home on the Property to replace the 

existing house, and;  
 
WHEREAS, two primary structures (houses) cannot be lawfully located on the same lot of 

record under the City’s zoning code, and; 
 
WHEREAS, Stromer wishes to retain and continue to occupy the existing home while the 

new home is being constructed, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the City is willing to allow Stromer to complete construction of the new home 

upon Stromer’s agreement to promptly raze and remove the existing house upon completion of the 
new house. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the City’s willingness to permit construction of a 

new home on the Property while an existing home is temporarily retained, Stromer hereby agrees as 
follows: 

 
1. Stromer shall remove the existing house within ninety (90) days of substantial 

completion of the new home as reasonably determined by the City’s building 
official.   
 

2. Stromer shall deposit $5000.00 with the City, to be held in escrow, upon execution 
of this Agreement (“Deposit”) to secure completion of the house removal.  The City 
may retain the deposit in its entirety in the event the existing house is not removed as 
provided this Agreement to offset the City’s anticipated costs to secure compliance. 

 
3. Upon substantial and satisfactory completion of construction of the new home as 

determined by the City’s building official, Stromer may request and be issued a 
temporary certificate of occupancy for the new home and may occupy such new 
home during removal of the existing home.  The temporary certificate of occupancy 
shall be for a period of ninety (90) days and shall be revocable by the building 
official in the event he/she determines that removal of the existing house is not 
proceeding or has ceased.   

 



RJV-241188v1  
ND115-7 

4. Stromer acknowledges that maintenance of two principal structures (homes) on the 
Property is impermissible and unlawful under Section 530.01, Subd. 2 of the City 
Code, and further that the City may cite and prosecute Stromer for non-compliance 
with this Agreement, or may sue to enjoin compliance with this Agreement, or may 
otherwise take any action deemed appropriate to secure compliance with this 
Agreement, and Stromer waives any opposition or defense to any such legal action 
to secure compliance with this Agreement.   

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Stromer has caused this instrument to be executed in 

acknowledgement and acceptance of all the terms and conditions herein set forth. 
 
Dated:                                           , 2021 
 
 
        
Richard Stromer 
 
        
Kari Stromer 
 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
     )  ss 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ________________, 
2021 by Richard and Kari Stromer, husband and wife. 
 
(Notarial Seal)             
       Notary Public 



 
DIRECTOR’S NEWS & NOTES 

WEST HENNEPIN PUBLIC SAFETY  
March 2021 Activity Report 

 
Year to Date Activity Report 

At the end of March 31, 2021 West Hennepin Public Safety (WHPS) handled year-to-date a total 
1,044 incident complaints: For the month of March 228 occurred in the City of Independence and 137 
in the City of Maple Plain.   
 
The Criminal Part I and Part II cases for both cities have been highlighted for your review on the 
attached documents.   
 
Recent Highlighted Cases:   
Property Damage Crash 
March 1 Hwy 12/ Main Street E, Maple Plain. Veh#2 waiting to turn e/b on Hwy 12 from Main 

Street E, inched out to see around the corner and was struck by Veh#1 e/b on Hwy 12. 
Both drivers contributed to the crash, no injuries. Veh#2 was towed from the scene. 

 
Loud Music 
March 1 12:53 p.m. 5700 block Main Street, Maple Plain. Complaint received of loud thumping 

bass music coming from a white passenger car sitting in the driveway. Officer found 2 
occupants inside the vehicle and from the road could hear the music clearly playing. 
The driver and passenger were warned for the loud music, it was late at night and not 
very neighborly. They apologized and went back inside the house. 

 
Breathing Problem 
March 1 1500 block Howard Ave. Maple Plain. Male having some chest pain and difficulty 

breathing was transported to the hospital by ambulance. 
 
Identity Theft 
March 2 6200 block Hwy 12, Independence. Male received a letter from Commonwealth of 

Kentucky that he was entitled to Pandemic Unemployment Assistance per his 
application. Male did not apply for PUA in Kentucky. Officer emailed the unemployment 
benefits manager advising of the fraudulent activity.   

 
Intoxication 
March 3 12:32 p.m. 5800 block Main Street Maple Plain. Officers responded to an intoxicated 

male incoherent and unable to stand on his own.  Male PBT indicated .354 BAC. Male 
was transported Ridgeview Medical Center.  

 
School Bus Stop Arm Violation 
March 3 9085 Hwy 12 W, Independence. Vehicle drove through the extended school bus stop 

arm while red lights were flashing. Violation was caught on camera and is under review 
to follow up and cite the driver.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



Suspicious Male 
March 3 8000 block CR 6, Independence. Resident was alarmed to see a male at the rear door 

of her residence, on her property without her knowledge. Resident had contact with the 
male suspect who stated the city of Independence asked Mediacom to check distances 
for fiber optic access. Resident did not ask for fiber optic access and expected a 
courtesy call from the city if people were going to be on their property. Mediacom 
advised to properly notify residents if they are on their property.  

 
Crime Prevention 
March 4 1:00 a.m. – 2:00 a.m. Main Street W & Maple Ridge Dr, Maple Plain. Routine patrol of 

neighborhood, officer found open garage doors and vehicles parked inside.  Crime 
Prevention notices were left on their vehicles reminding to secure their property to 
prevent thefts. 

 
Amazon Fraud Call 
March 5 5300 block Clayton Dr, Maple Plain. Resident reported she allowed a male caller 

claiming he was with Amazon to remote into her cell phone and laptop computer. The 
male suspect gained access to her PayPal, cash app accounts which contained debit 
and credit card information. Afterwards, resident realized this was a fraudulent call and 
notified her financial institutions, accounts and fraudulent charges were canceled. 
Resident wanted others to know Amazon will not call you on suspicious or fraudulent 
charges.  

 
Property Damage Crash 
March 6 CR 6/ CR 110, Independence. Both Veh#1 and Veh#2 were at the 4-way stop sign at 

CR 110 and CR 6.  Both drivers stated they proceed through the intersection, then the 
other vehicle was "just there". Neither driver stated they had the right of way nor blamed 
the other driver. No injuries. Veh#2 was towed from the scene.  

 
Welfare Check 
March 6 1800 block Budd Ave. Maple Plain Caller requested a welfare check on a friend she has 

not been able to get a hold of by phone, text messages or answering the door.  Officer 
used the master key to enter the apartment when no response to his knocking. Officer 
announced himself and found the male was fine, he had not been feeling well and his 
phone had been shut off.  Caller was advised of his findings.  

 
Loud Music 
March 6 11:15 p.m. 5700 block Main St. Maple Plain. Loud music complaint, 2 occupants inside 

a vehicle in the driveway and loud thumping music heard from the street. 19-year-old 
Niko William Girardin, from Spring Park was cited for Minor Consumption of Alcohol and 
17-year-old female passenger cited for Minor Consumption of Alcohol and Possession 
Small Amount of Marijuana.  

 
Traffic Complaint 
March 8 Valley Rd /BNSF Railroad, Independence.  BNSF Railway reported a conductor had a 

close call with a UPS delivery truck at the railroad crossing that only has a stop sign and 
no lights or arms at the crossing. No license plate obtained; the vehicle was not located. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Structure Fire 
March 8      2000 block CR 92, Independence Homeowner was gutting the inside of his house for a 

remodel.  A wall started to collapse causing the main electrical power wire attached to 
the wall, pull tight and started sparking. The sparking started the house on fire and the 
home was a complete loss. Delano FD, Watertown FD, and Wright Hennepin Electric 
responded.  

 
Welfare Check 
March 8 2800 block CR 92, Independence.  Caller requested a welfare check on a neighbor 

whose truck door was left open on Friday and again today. Homeowner was fine, he 
leaves the truck door open as his dog likes to come and go from it.  

 
School Bus Stop Arm Violation 
March 9        7800 block Highway 12, Independence.  Vehicle drove through the extended school bus 

stop arm while red lights were flashing. The violation was caught on camera and driver 
was cited for the violation.  

 
Medical 
March 10 5200 block Bryantwood Dr, Maple Plain. 14-year-old juvenile diabetic male was 

transported to the hospital for high blood sugar.  
 
 
Misc. Assist 
March 11 4:03 p.m. 3675 Ihduhapi Trail, Independence. Vinland Nat ’l Center reported a client 

was making suicidal statements and threatened to drown himself or have someone 
shoot him. He was last seen walking on Lake Independence with a boulder. Multiple 
police depts, sheriff office and water patrol agencies assisted in the search along with 
the use of drones.  The male was not located, and a KOPS alert was issued on the 
male. At 10:15 p.m. the male returned to Vinland, stated he walked to Maple Plain to 
just walk around town and got a ride back to Vinland by unknown person.  

 
School Bus Stop Arm Violation 
March 11      1400 block Nelson Rd, Independence.  Vehicle drove through the extended school bus 

stop arm while red lights were flashing. The violation was caught on camera and is 
being followed up on to cite the driver. 

 
Pain 
March 12 2700 block Valley Rd, Independence. Male had weakness and leg pain, and unable to 

stand on his own and was transported to the hospital by ambulance.  
 
Breathing Problem 
March 12 6400 Block Olstad Dr, Independence. Responded to an infant that cried loudly and 

appeared to stop breathing.  Officer and EMS arrival, the baby was having a bottle, 
appeared to be getting plenty of oxygen now and receptive to touch.  North Memorial 
EMS checked the baby’s vitals, and all was ok.  

 
Medical 
March 13 1500 block Howard Ave., Maple Plain. Reported a male had injured his leg causing a 

cut and bleeding. He had wrapped a bandage around his leg and controlled the 
bleeding.  North Memorial EMS transported him to the hospital.  

 
 
 



Suspicious Act 
March 13 5300 block Hwy 12, Maple Plain. Caller reported a male was sticking a stick through a 

window of a truck parked in a lot, appeared to be attempting to unlock. Contact made 
with the male who was found to be the owner of the truck and did not want to go back in 
the building to get keys for his truck to unlock it. 

 
Welfare Check 
March 13 9100 block CR 11, Independence. Caller requested a welfare check on her husband 

who has not answered his phone in a couple hours and that was unusual. Officer 
responded to the residence and spoke with the husband who had been sleeping on the 
couch. He was told to call his wife. 

 
3rd Degree DWI 
March 23 Hwy 12/ Pioneer Creek Center, Maple Plain. Vehicle stopped for 62-mph in a 50-mph 

zone. Jeffery Ryan Weldon, 32 from Delano provided a breath sample which resulted in 
.20 Breath Alcohol Concentration. Weldon was arrested for 3rd Degree DWI and 
released to a sober person.  

 
Medical 
March 14 1600 block Perkins Lane, Maple Plain. Report received of a female who was confused 

and had shortness of breath. North Memorial EMS monitored the female and 
transported her to the hospital.  

 
Crash 
March 15 2:47 p.m. Pagenkopf Rd / Independence Rd, Independence. Veh#1 was eastbound on 

Pagenkopf Rd when a westbound Veh#2 came across the center line and struck Veh#1. 
Both vehicles were towed from the ditch. Veh#1 was driven from the scene, Veh#2 was 
towed. The roads were icy, and the crash happened on a curve.  

 
Crash 
March 15 3:54 p.m. 6000 block CR 11, Independence. Driver lost control of his vehicle and struck 

a mailbox. Driver spoke with the homeowner that she would take care of the mailbox 
and then left. No injuries 

 
Crash 
March 15 5:02 p.m. CR 11 / Lake Haughey Rd, Independence. Reported a slumper in a black 

vehicle in the ditch. Officer found the vehicle in the ditch, unoccupied. Officer observed 
foot tracks leading from the car to the roadway. The area was checked, and no one was 
found. 

 
Crash 
March 15 9:37 p.m. 9200 block CR 6, Independence. Veh#1 was plowing a resident’s driveway 

and slid into the roadway. Veh#2 was eastbound on CR 6, attempted to get out of the 
way but was struck by the plow that was attached to Veh#1. Light damage to both 
vehicles, no injuries. 

Crash 
March 15 10:25 p.m. 9100 block CR 11, Independence. Driver stated a deer was in the middle of 

the road, it scared him, he panicked and started braking. His vehicle slid into the ditch 
and his vehicle ended up on its side. Driver was wearing his seatbelt and was not 
injured.  

 
 
 



3 Car Crash 
March 17 3:14 p.m. 8500 block CR 11, Independence.  A school bus was stopped at a resident’s 

driveway, dropping off kids. Vehicle 3 and vehicle 2 were stopped in traffic behind the 
bus. Vehicle 1 rear ended vehicle 2 which then struck vehicle 3.  Driver of vehicle 1 
stated she looked down to pick something up and did not realize that the cars had 
stopped. Driver 1 was issued a citation for Fail to Drive with Due Care. All three vehicles 
were towed by Williams Towing.  

 
Suspicious Act 
March 18 1:04 a.m. 5100 block Oak Street Maple Plain. Vehicle parked in front of a closed 

business. Officer found a male sitting in the front seat sleeping. Officer woke up the 
male who said he was tired.  Officer told hm to go home, he lives 3 blocks away.  

 
Medical 
March 18 6:02 a.m. 4800 block Gateway Blvd Maple Plain. Female attempting to get out of bed, 

slid off, falling to the floor and struck her head causing a contusion to her forehead and 
bleeding. North Memorial EMS took over care and transported her to the hospital. 

 
Drunk Problem 
March 19 5300 block Hwy 12, Maple Plain. Reported an intoxicated male was wandering around 

in the parking lot. Male admitted he had been drinking, had a strong odor of alcohol on 
his breath, speech was slurred, and his balance was uncertain. He agreed to stay in his 
room, or he would be taken to detox. 

 
Crash/ DWI 
March 19 Hwy 12 / County Line, Independence. Driver Ashley Jill Schmidt, 30 of Maple Plain was 

eastbound on Hwy 12, admitted she was not paying attention while driving and drove up 
on the cement median and struck several signs. Schmidt submitted a breath test which 
resulted in .16 BAC. She was arrested for 3rd Degree DWI and released to a sober 
person. 

 
Suspicious Activity 
March 20 7:53 p.m. County Line Rd / Nelson Rd, Independence. Caller reported a driver on 

Nelson Rd was opening a mailbox and as he approached, the vehicle high beams were 
turned on and the male occupant flipped off the caller. Caller followed the vehicle onto 
Hwy 12 and then called the police. The area was checked and found mailboxes opened 
but mail was inside. Unknown if a theft occurred. 

 
Pursuit 
March 23 7:50 p.m. Copeland Rd / CR 6 Independence. Officers attempted to stop a vehicle 

traveling 66/50 mph and speeds up to 100mph. Vehicle stopped after spinning out in the 
middle of the road on the rain covered roads. Pursuit lasted approximately 6 miles. 
Driver Kevin Lord Christopher Jr, 27 of St. Paul was arrested, transported, and booked 
into Hennepin Co Jail, charged with Felony Fleeing a Peace Officer in a Motor Vehicle.  

 
School Bus Stop Arm Violation 
March 24 9000 block Hwy 12, Independence. Vehicle drove through the extended school bus stop 

arm while red lights were flashing. Violation was caught on camera and is under review 
to follow up and cite the driver.   

 
 
 
 



Recovered Stolen 
March 24 500 block CR 110, Independence. Vehicle parked in a church parking lot was found to 

be a stolen vehicle from the MSP Airport. Key was inside on the floorboard; radio face 
plate and spare tire were missing. A water bottle and small bag and blanket were in the 
rear of the vehicle. Vehicle as towed and MSP Airport were advised of the recovery.  

 
Mental 
March 24 3600 block Ihduhapi Trail, Independence. Client with psychotic outbursts was hitting a 

tv, hitting himself, and having severe mood swings. Officer arrival the client was calm 
and in his room. He had not taken his meds for a couple days, was not feeling like 
himself and wanted to go to the hospital.  North Memorial EMS arrived and transported 
him to the hospital. 

 
Traffic Complaint 
March 25 Baker Park Rd/ Hwy 12, Maple Plain. Contact with the male driver of a driving complaint 

of his vehicle weaving and crossed over the center line: no signs of impairment were 
found. Male stated he may have been distracted by a phone headset that fell down. 
Male was verbally warned for Fail to Drive with Due Care.  

 
Solicitor Complaint 
March 25 5300 block Three Oaks Ave, Maple Plain, Resident reported a male on a bicycle is 

knocking on doors asking if they want to sell their house, now or in the future. Male 
stated he has a license to sell houses. Solicitor did not have a solicitor’s license thru the 
city. The area was checked, and the solicitor was not located.  

 
Heart 
March 25      3600 block Ihduhapi Trail, Independence. Client recently admitted to Vinland, admitted 

he had used meth 12 hours before arriving at the treatment facility and his heart rate 
was slightly elevated.  North Memorial EMS transported him to the hospital. 

 
Abandoned Vehicle 
March 26 2700 block CR 92, Independence.   A vehicle was parked on the shoulder of the road 

for over a day. Vehicle owner was contacted, it was his daughter’s car, she had a flat 
tire, and the vehicle would be removed.   

 
Scam Attempt 
March 26 1700 block Howard Ave., Maple Plain.  Caller stated he was from Amazon and the 

residents Amazon order was sent to an address in California. Caller asked if resident 
had a computer in front of her and she did not. As she was hanging up, she could hear 
the male laughing and talking in the background. Resident does not use Amazon and 
Amazon does not call. This was a scam attempt.  

 
Grass Fire 
March 26 2200 block S Lake Sarah Dr., Independence. A windrow of leaves along the property 

roadway started on fire. Most likely started by the mower. as the caretaker was mowing 
and cleaning around trees. MPFD extinguished fire. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Fleeing Peace Officer 
March 26 8:22 p.m. Baker Park Rd / Hwy 12, Independence. Traffic light signal was red, a vehicle 

entered the intersection, accelerated rapidly reaching 71mph/55mph, traveling 
eastbound on Hwy 12. Vehicle reached speeds up to 120mph and passed numerous 
cars on the shoulder traveling over 100 mph. Officer lost view of the vehicle and 
stopped the pursuit. Minnetonka PD located the fleeing vehicle which struck two spike 
strips. Vehicle crashed into 2 vehicles and a MTC bus. Driver- Phillip Brian Halliday 32, 
from MPLS, exited the vehicle through the sunroof. Halliday was arrested, transported, 
and booked into Hennepin Co Jail, charged with Felony Fleeing a Peace Officer in a 
Motor Vehicle.  

 
Debris in Roadway 
March 27 Hwy 12 / Valley Rd, Independence. Caller witnessed a tree falling and thought it struck 

a trailer being pulled by a truck, but the truck did not stop.  The tree was removed from 
the roadway as it was partially blocking the lane of traffic.  

 
Theft from Motor Vehicle 
March 28 10:10 a.m. 5200 block Bryantwood Dr, Maple Plain. Victim found a silver floor jack 

under the passenger side of his vehicle with his vehicle lifted. Fresh hacksaw cuts were 
found in the metal and the catalytic converter had been removed.  

 
Traffic Complaint 
March 29 Hwy 12 / CR 90, Independence. Reported a tractor trailer driven slowly on Hwy 12 is 

dragging a loose tarp. The area was checked and unable to locate the tractor trailer.   
 
Road Debris 
March 29 CR 90 / Hwy 12, Independence. A caution sign: ‘road work ahead’ had blown over and 

was partially in the eastbound lane of Hwy 12/ CR 90. Officer removed the sign from the 
roadway and placed it in the ditch. Construction crew was notified status of their sign. 

 
Grass Fire 
March 29 120 block of CR 19, Independence. Reported a large brush fire, 100 yards long by 8 ft, 

active flames 6 -7 feet high. Maple Plain Fire extinguished the fire. Source of the fire 
was from a tree arcing in the power lines.  

 
Illegal Dumping 
March 30 CR 11/ Lake Haughey Rd, Independence. A couch was dumped in the ditch. Hennepin 

County Maintenance notified to pick up the love seat in the ditch that the owners no 
longer loved.  

 
Identity Theft 
March 30 700 block Kuntz Dr., Independence. Resident reported someone opened a bank debit 

card in her name and she received the card in the mail. Resident contacted her bank 
who stated she is not out any money, and they would cancel the card. Resident advised 
to check the FTC.gov website for more information on how to protect herself against 
identity theft. Also, to check if any other cards have been opened in her name.  

 
 
 
104 contacts of citations, verbal and written warnings were issued for traffic and equipment violations. 
2 citations for wireless hands-free communications device 
 




